

ORDINANCE NO. O-2021-303

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 32, ARTICLE II, SECTION 32-23 AND SECTION 32-33 (2018 EDITION), CITY OF ROUND ROCK, TEXAS, REGARDING NONRESIDENTIAL REFUSE; AND PROVIDING FOR A SAVINGS CLAUSE AND REPEALING CONFLICTING ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROUND ROCK, TEXAS:

I.

That Chapter 32, Article II, Section 32-23 of the Code of Ordinances (2018 Edition), City of Round Rock, Texas, is hereby amended as follows:

Sec. 32-23. - ~~General commercial~~ Nonresidential refuse.

- (a) *Containers.* For nonresidential customers, ~~either the customer or its refuse collection the city's~~ contractor shall provide containers suitable for dumping by mechanical means. Non-residential customers include all commercial and industrial businesses, institutional and governmental entities, and multi-unit residential complexes located within the City. Containers will be placed on private premises at locations agreed between the owner or occupant and the ~~commercial refuse collection city's~~ contractor; provided, however, no such container shall be placed: 1) within 15 feet of the boundary of any abutting property with a SF (Single-family) or TF (Two-family) zoning designation; or 2) in any front, rear or side yard abutting to a street. The city will not be responsible for damages to paved surfaces on private property caused by commercial refuse collection trucks. Sufficient containers will be placed to accommodate the refuse from each ~~business~~ nonresidential customer. Adjacent small businesses may share containers.
- (b) *Manner of disposal.* All refuse from ~~business and commercial non-residential~~ establishments shall be placed in the containers. No refuse shall be left outside the containers. All garbage shall be drained before placing in containers. All packing boxes larger than two cubic feet must be flattened before placing in containers. No manure, building materials, rocks, dirt or dead animals shall be placed in the containers.
- (c) *Collection.* The city's contractor will collect refuse on a schedule agreed upon between the contractor and the nonresidential customer. Refuse containers shall not be placed out for collection earlier than 5:00 p.m. on the business day prior to the established collection day and shall be moved from the collection site no later than 7:00 a.m. the day after the collection day. For the purposes of this section, a business day shall be defined as any day the City of Round Rock offices are open for business.
- (d) *Recycling containers.* The requirements in subsections (a), (b) and (c) of this section pertaining to refuse containers shall also apply to recycling containers.
- (e) This section shall not apply to nonresidential customers in the downtown commercial district as defined in subsection 32-33(c).

1 II.

2 That Chapter 32, Article II, Section 32-33(b) of the Code of Ordinances (2018
3 Edition), City of Round Rock, Texas, is hereby amended as follows:

4 **Sec. 32-28. - Garbage collection service charges.**

- 5 (b) ~~General commercial~~Nonresidential. A sanitation charge for the collection of refuse ~~from all business,~~
6 ~~commercial, retail, industrial, and manufacturing establishments~~ for all nonresidential customers
7 shall be made ~~when such collection service is provided~~ by ~~its~~the city's contractor. The charge shall
8 include furnishing containers for refuse. ~~Multiple house units having more than five housing units~~
9 ~~shall be considered commercial customers. The sanitation charge for commercial refuse collection~~
10 ~~shall be set by the contractor providing said service.~~ This subsection (b) shall exclude all businesses
11 located within the downtown commercial district described in subsection (c) below. The sanitation
12 charges for nonresidential customers as set forth below. The rates set forth below do not include
13 any city franchise fees that may be passed through to nonresidential customers and taxes imposed
14 directly upon any nonresidential customers by the state, city, or other governmental unit and
15 collected by the city's contractor.

16 (1) Monthly Garbage Rates:

Container Size (yd)	1X Week	2X Week	3X Week	4X Week	5X Week	6X Week	Extra Pick-Up
2	\$56.82	\$113.64	\$170.44	\$227.26	\$284.08	\$340.90	\$80.81
3	\$68.07	\$136.14	\$204.21	\$272.28	\$340.34	\$408.41	\$85.86
4	\$79.32	\$158.65	\$237.97	\$317.29	\$396.62	\$475.94	\$90.91
6	\$101.83	\$203.66	\$305.48	\$407.32	\$509.15	\$610.98	\$101.01
8	\$124.33	\$248.68	\$373.01	\$497.34	\$621.69	\$746.02	\$116.16
10	\$142.97	\$285.97	\$428.95	\$571.95	\$714.93	\$857.93	\$141.41

17
18 (2) Monthly Recycling Rates:

Container Size (yd)	1X Week	2X Week	3X Week	4X Week	5X Week	6X Week	Extra Pick-Up
2	\$56.81	\$113.63	\$170.43	\$227.25	\$284.07	\$340.89	\$80.81
4	\$79.31	\$158.64	\$237.96	\$317.28	\$396.61	\$475.93	\$90.91
6	\$101.83	\$203.65	\$305.47	\$407.31	\$509.14	\$610.97	\$101.01
8	\$124.32	\$248.67	\$373.00	\$497.33	\$621.68	\$746.01	\$116.16

(3) Monthly Commercial Curbside Carts Rates:

1 96 gal Garbage Cart & 1 96 gal Recycling Cart	\$16.54
Each Additional Cart	\$16.54
Bulk Pick-Ups	\$25.25 a trip plus \$5.05 per item

(4) Roll-Off Rates (Excluding Roll-Offs for Construction Activities):

Container Size (cy)	Rate Per Pick-Up	Delivery Fee	Additional Fee*
20 cy	\$389.90	\$75.76	\$10.10 per day
30 cy	\$479.80	\$75.76	\$10.10 per day
40 cy	\$515.15	\$75.76	\$10.0 per day

*Additional Fee is the fee charged per day if the roll-off is not picked up within 15 days.

(5) Containers with a Receiver Box Rates:

Container Size (cy)	Rate Per Pick- Up
40 cy	\$593.94
42 cy	\$606.06

(6) Monthly Lock Bar Price Per Container:

Frequency of Pick-Up	Without Casters	With Casters (4 yd max)
1X Week	\$10.10	\$20.20
2X Week	\$20.20	\$30.30

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

III.

This ordinance shall be effective May 1, 2022 at 12:01 a.m.

IV.

A. All ordinances, parts of ordinances, or resolutions in conflict herewith are expressly repealed.

B. The invalidity of any section or provision of this ordinance shall not invalidate other sections or provisions thereof.

C. The City Council hereby finds and declares that written notice of the date, hour, place and subject of the meeting at which this Ordinance was adopted was posted and that such meeting was open to the public as required by law at all times during which this Ordinance and the subject matter hereof were discussed, considered and formally acted upon, all as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended.

READ and **APPROVED** on first reading this the ____ day of _____, 2021.

READ, APPROVED and **ADOPTED** on second reading this the ____ day of _____, 2021.

CRAIG MORGAN, Mayor
City of Round Rock, Texas

ATTEST:

MEAGAN SPINKS, City Clerk